
Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, March 26, 2013                                                                           City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Human Services Commission applicants beginning at 5:40 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 
• Arbor Day Proclamation (Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand) 
• Earth Day Proclamation (Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand) 
• Covington Library Anniversary (King County Library System) 
• Recognition of Finance Staff for CAFR (Hendrickson) 
• International Student Exchange Day in the city of Covington (Miyeun Jang) 

 
RECEPTION TO WELCOME EXCHANGE STUDENTS AND TEACHERS 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  March 12, 2013 Study Session Minutes and March 12, 2013 Regular Meeting 

Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
C-3. Approve Contract with SBS Legal Services, PLLC for City Attorney Services (Matheson) 
C-4. Interlocal Agreement with the City of Black Diamond for Building Code Administration, 

Inspection, and Plan Review (Hart/Meyers) 
C-5. Accept Billing Agreement with Soos Creek Water & Sewer District for Lift Station 46 

(Matheson) 
C-6. Accept Engineering Contract for Project Design (Akramoff) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  March 14 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  March 14 meeting. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  March 20 meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  March 7 meeting; March 21 meeting canceled. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  February 28 meeting.  

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consider Appointments to Human Services Commission (Council) 
2. Discuss Citizen Survey Questions (Slate)  
3. Update on Aquatic Center Renovations (Thomas) 
4. Discussion on Aquatics and Field Use Fees (Thomas) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  



 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  March 26, 2013   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  MARCH 12, 2013 CITY COUNCIL STUDY 

SESSION MINUTES AND MARCH 12, 2013 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Summary 
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the March 12, 2013 City Council Study 
Session Minutes and March 12, 2013 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 107



Unapproved Draft – March 12, 2013 Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 26, 2013 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
City Council Study Session Minutes 

Tuesday, March 12, 2013 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Study Session was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, 
Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, March 12, 2013, at 6:03 p.m., with Mayor Harto 
presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Richard Hart, Community 
Development Director, Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Scott 
Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Don Vondran, Senior City Engineer; Salina Lyons, Senior 
Planner; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to approve the agenda. 
 
ITEM(S) FOR DISCUSSION: 
1. Introduction, Parks Capital Improvement Program, Facility Capital Improvement Program, 

Surface Water Management Capital Improvement Program, Transportation Capital 
Improvement Program, and Summary. 

 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff introduced the item. 
 
Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas then moved into the staff report on the process that 
will be used to update the Parks CIP.  Mr. Thomas also reported on the Aquatics facility. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Thomas provided responses. 
 
Mr. Akramoff then continued with the staff report on the Facility CIP and the Surface Water 
Management CIP. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions, and Mr. Akramoff provided responses. 
 

2 of 107



Unapproved Draft – March 12, 2013 Study Session Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 26, 2013 
 

 2 

Senior City Engineer Don Vondran and Victor Salemann, Senior Associate at David Evans & 
Associates, gave the staff report on the Transportation CIP. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to extend the study session by 30 minutes 
and begin the regular meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Senior Planner Salina Lyons continued the staff report indicating further information would be 
provided at a future meeting regarding the Hawk property and the 204th connection. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and staff provided responses. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

3 of 107



Unapproved Draft – March 12, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 26, 2013 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, March 12, 2013 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, 
February 12, 2013, at 7:40 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, and Wayne Snoey. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Lucavish seconded to 
excuse Councilmembers Lanza, Lucavish, and Wagner.  Vote:  4-0.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin 
Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Sara Springer, City 
Attorney; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director; Bill Fealy, Maintenance Worker; John 
Gaudette, Maintenance Worker; Jesse Dalton, Maintenance Worker; and Sharon Scott, City 
Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  4-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUCATION:   

• Courtney Feeney of the Middle Green River Coalition provided an update on the King 
County Cedar Downs Natural Area. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Leroy Stevenson, 26838 166th Place SE, Covington, inquired as to the reason why the utility 
tax on his bill was higher than six percent maximum. Mr. Stevenson advised that when he 
contacted Puget Sound Energy, he was told that there is a tax on the tax.  Mr. Stevenson 
requested that Council amend the ordinance to exempt taxing the city tax, and preferably exempt 
the state tax from being taxed by the local utility tax. 

4 of 107



Unapproved Draft – March 12, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 26, 2013 
 

 2 

 
City Manager Derek Matheson advised Council that Mr. Stevenson’s comments were accurate.  
Mr. Matheson explained that the tax applies to the gross receipts of the utility including the tax 
revenue so the rate must be set higher in order to collect the six percent and remit it to the city.  
Mr. Matheson further explained that this methodology is not just a Covington methodology, but 
it is actually used by all cities and all utilities. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  February 12, 2013 Study Session Minutes; February 12, 2013 Regular 

Meeting Minutes; and February 26, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
 

C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #29025—29088, in the Amount of $160,744.30, Dated February 
19, 2013; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001076641-1001076651 Inclusive, Plus 
Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $143,870.79, Dated March 1, 2013. 
 

C-3. Accept King County Solid Waste Interlocal Agreement. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Mhoon moved and Council Snoey seconded to approve 
the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  4-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
1.  Discuss Public Works Reorganization Budget Impacts. 
 
Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to approve staff’s recommendation of 
changing the project inspector position to permanent with 100 percent from Surface Water 
Management Fund; hiring a permanent fourth maintenance worker with splits of 40 
percent Surface Water Management Fund, 40 percent Street Fund, and 20 percent Parks 
Fund; with Public Works and Finance working  during the 2014 budget process to change 
the payroll and benefit assignment process as detailed in the staff report recommendation 
in the council agenda packet. 
 
2.  Transportation Benefit District Timeline. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to opt for a public vote in November 2013 
on the 0.2% sales tax for transportation purposes. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
 

5 of 107



Unapproved Draft – March 12, 2013 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  March 26, 2013 
 

 3 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

6 of 107



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 26, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #29089—29161, in the Amount of $156,264.47, Dated March 
5, 2013; Vouchers #29162-29163, in the Amount of $7,619.05, Dated March 12, 2013; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1001107961-1001107975 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits 
in the Amount of $144,673.08, Dated March 15, 2013. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment:  Vouchers #29089—29161, in the 
Amount of $156,264.47, Dated March 5, 2013; Vouchers #29162-29163, in 
the Amount of $7,619.05, Dated March 12, 2013; and Paylocity Payroll 
Checks #1001107961-1001107975 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits 
in the Amount of $144,673.08, Dated March 15, 2013. 
 
 
 
 

7 of 107



8 of 107



9 of 107



10 of 107



11 of 107



12 of 107



13 of 107



14 of 107



15 of 107



16 of 107



17 of 107



18 of 107



19 of 107



20 of 107



21 of 107



22 of 107



23 of 107



Consent Agenda Item C-3 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: March 26, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH SBS 

LEGAL SERVICES, PLLC FOR 2013 CITY ATTORNEY SERVICES.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Proposed Contract for City Attorney Services. 
 
PREPARED BY:  Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The city contracts with SBS Legal Services, PLLC, for City Attorney services.  The current 
contract expires on March 26, 2013.  There are no changes proposed in the 2013 contract to 
either the level of service or the rate. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Not approve the contract and provide direction to staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:           Ordinance             Resolution      X    Motion               Other  
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ seconds 
to authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with SBS Legal Services, 
PLLC for 2013 City Attorney services. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 

24 of 107



 
 Page 1 of 3 

Contract No. __________ 
CONTRACT FOR SERVICES  

 
 This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of  Covington, Washington (the “City"), 
and SBS Legal Services, PLLC, (the “Contractor”).    
 
 IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties 
hereto agree as follows: 
 
 1. Scope and Schedule of Services to be Performed by Contractor.  The Contractor shall 
provide City Attorney services to the City and Sara B. Springer, a member attorney of the Contractor, 
shall serve as the City Attorney, providing the traditional scope of attorney services. The Contractor 
shall also be responsible for providing an equally qualified coverage attorney, when necessary. In 
performing such services, the Contractor shall at all times faithfully, and to the best of its ability and 
experience, perform all of the duties that are required of it pursuant to the express terms of this 
Agreement, the rules of professional responsibility, and the direction of city management.  
 2. Compensation and Method of Payment.   
  a. Compensation.  The City shall pay the Contractor a flat monthly fee of $5,000.00 for legal 
services. The flat monthly fee is based upon the Contractor providing up to thirty-five (35) hours of 
attorney time each month.  Any legal services performed above thirty-five (35) hours in a given month 
shall be billed to the tenth (1/10) of the hour at the regular hourly rate of $145.00.  Should the 
Contractor perform less than thirty (30) hours of legal services in a given month, the Contractor shall 
apply a pro-rated credit, calculated to the tenth(1/10) of the hour at the regular hourly rate of $145.00, 
to the flat fee owed by the City to the Contractor. Any legal services provided by a coverage attorney 
shall be included within the above compensation provisions.  
  b. Travel. The Contractor shall not bill nor be entitled to payment for travel time to and from 
the City. Any other travel by the Contractor on behalf of the City shall be billed at to the tenth (1/10) of 
the hour at 50% of the regular hourly rate of the Contractor.  
  c. Miscellaneous Expenses. The Contractor shall not bill nor be entitled to payment for 
telephone, photocopy, fax, and mileage expenses incurred in the performance of its duties; provided, 
however, that the City shall make a reasonable accommodation to reimburse the Contractor for unusual 
photocopy and fax costs, if any, that may arise in the course of litigation to which the City is a party or 
other extraordinary projects. In all events, the City shall reimburse the Contractor for legal messenger 
service expenses, court filing fees, transcripts, and other similar expenses advanced on the City’s 
behalf.  
  d. Payment. The Contractor shall submit monthly payment invoices to the City after such 
services have been performed. The City shall pay the full amount of the invoice within thirty (30) days 
of receipt, unless there is a dispute. In the event of a dispute, the City shall pay any amount not in 
dispute and the parties shall meet to resolve any differences. If the parties are unable to resolve any 
such differences, the parties shall submit the disputed amount to the Fee Arbitration Board of the State 
of Washington Bar Association for arbitration and prompt resolution. The parties agree to be bound by 
the results of such arbitration. In the event of non-payment following arbitration, the City shall pay the 
Contractor the costs of collecting the debt, including court costs and fees, and reasonable attorneys 
fees. 
 3. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period of 
twelve (12) months, commencing on the date executed by the parties below unless sooner terminated 
under the provisions hereinafter specified. 
 4. Independent Contractor.  Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall 
utilize only attorneys licensed by the State of Washington and in good standing with the Washington 
State Bar Association. The Contractor and the City agree that the Contractor is an independent 
contractor with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and employee between the parties 

ATTACHMENT 1

25 of 107



 
 Page 2 of 3 

hereto.  Neither the Contractor nor any employee of the Contractor shall be entitled to any benefits 
accorded City employees by virtue of the services provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not 
be responsible for withholding or otherwise deducting federal income tax or social security or 
contributing to the State Industrial Insurance Program, or otherwise assuming the duties of an employer 
with respect to the Contractor, or any employee of the Contractor. 
 The parties acknowledge that the Contractor will provide work and services for other clients in its 
independent law practice. The Contractor agrees not to perform such services for other clients where a 
conflict of interest or ethical violation as defined in the Rules of Professional Conduct for attorneys 
exists. 
 5. Indemnification.  The Contractor releases and shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the 
City, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers from any and all claims, demands, 
losses, actions and liabilities (including costs and all attorney’s fees) arising from the negligent and 
intentionally wrongful acts or omissions of the Contractor in the performance of legal services under 
this Agreement, or by the Contractor’s breach of this Agreement. To the maximum extent permitted by 
applicable law, this indemnification provision shall apply. However, this shall not require the 
Contractor to indemnify the City against any liability for damages arising out of bodily injury or 
property damages caused by or resulting from negligence of the City.  Further, the City shall protect, 
defend and indemnify and save harmless the Contractor, its attorneys and other employees from all 
costs, claims, judgments or damages arising out of the negligent acts or omissions of the City, its 
officers, employees or volunteers or due to the City’s breach of this Agreement. 
 6. Insurance. The Contractor shall procure and maintain in full force throughout the duration of 
the Agreement professional liability insurance including Errors and Omissions as appropriate to the 
services performed and shall be written on a claims made form basis with limits of in no case less than 
$500,000.00 per occurrence.  Cancellation of the required insurance shall automatically result in 
termination of this Agreement. A declaration of professional liability insurance as required above shall 
be delivered to the City within fifteen (15) days of execution of this Agreement. 
 7. Record Keeping and Reporting. 
  a. The Contractor shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, 
financial and programmatic records which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs 
of any nature expended and services performed in the performance of this Agreement and other such 
records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure the performance of this Agreement. 
  b. These records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination hereof 
unless permission to destroy them is granted by the office of the archivist in accordance with RCW 
Chapter 40.14 and by the City.  
 8. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause by 
providing a thirty (30) day written notice of termination to the other party.  
 9. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee, 
applicant for employment, or any person seeking the services of the Contractor to be provided under 
this Agreement on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, marital status or 
presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap. 
 10. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Parties 
hereto and no other Agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement, 
shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties hereto.  Either Party may request changes in the 
agreement.  Proposed changes which are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written 
amendments to this Agreement. 
 11. Notices.  Notices to the City of Covington shall be sent to the following address: 
   City Clerk, City of Covington 
   16720 SE 271st St, Suite 100 
   Covington, Washington 98042 
  Notices to the Contractor shall be sent to the address provided by the Contractor upon the 
signature line below. 

26 of 107



 
 Page 3 of 3 

 12.   Assignment.  Neither the Contractor nor the City shall have the right to transfer or assign, in 
whole or in part, any or all of its obligations and rights hereunder without the prior written consent of 
the other party.  
 13. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorney's Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  In the event any suit, arbitration, or 
other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties specifically understand 
and agree that venue shall be properly laid in King County, Washington.  The prevailing party in any 
such action shall be entitled to its attorney's fees and costs of suit. 
 
 DATED this _______ day of ___________________, 2013. 
 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON  CONTRACTOR:  
 
By:  By:  
 
Title:  _______________________________   
  Title:  
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATED:   
  Printed Name:   
  
Sharon Scott, City Clerk  Address:  
   
    
   
  Date approved by City Council:   
          (If Applicable) 

27 of 107



Consent Agenda Item C-4  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 26, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER ENTERING INTO AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITIES OF COVINGTON AND BLACK DIAMOND RELATING TO 
BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION, BUILDING PLAN REVIEW, AND 
BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES.  

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed Interlocal Agreement for Building Code Administration, Building Plan Review, 
and Building Inspection Services. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Robert Meyers, Building Official 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The City of Black Diamond wishes to continue their Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with the City of 
Covington for a variety of Building Safety Services.  The current ILA is scheduled to expire on 
March 22, 2013, after being in place for the past two years.  The revised ILA is very similar to 
the current ILA, except for the removal of code enforcement services currently provided, a slight 
reduction of the minimum hours of service per month from 56 hours to 45 hours a month, and a 
$3 per hour increase in hourly rates for our services.  Black Diamond has indicated the desire to 
remove the code enforcement services because of budget and revenue constraints.  Therefore 
Covington is proposing the attached ILA with the City of Black Diamond for an additional two 
years from March 2013 through March 2015.  The City of Black Diamond approved the attached 
ILA on March 14, 2013.  The ILA includes provisions for the following services: 

1. Building Code Administration, 
2. Building Plan Review, and  
3. Building Inspections. 

 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Decline the proposed Interlocal Agreement with Black Diamond at this time. 
Refer Interlocal Agreement to staff for revision of specified terms.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None, as the approximately $40,000 revenue generated will cover the costs of the specified hours 
for the building safety services provided to Black Diamond under this Interlocal Agreement. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to enter into an Interlocal Agreement 
Between the Cities of Covington and Black Diamond Relating to Building 
Safety Services. 
 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; & Finance Director. 

28 of 107



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITIES OF BLACK DIAMOND & COVINGTON 

RELATING TO BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION, PLANS EXAMINATION, & 
BUILDING INSPECTIONSERVICES 

 
 
 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, hereinafter “Agreement”, is entered into 
between the CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WA hereinafter “Black Diamond”, and the 
CITY OF COVINGTON, WA hereinafter “Covington”. 
 
 WHEREAS, Black Diamond and Covington are public agencies as defined by 
Ch. 39.34 of the Revised Code of Washington (“RCW”), and are authorized to enter into 
interlocal agreements on the basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide services 
and facilities in the manner and pursuant to forms of governmental organization that will 
accord best with geographic, economic, population, and other factors influencing the 
needs of local communities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Covington’s Community Development Department maintains a 
building division that regularly enforces and administers the building code requirements, 
reviews building permit applications, and conducts building inspections; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Black Diamond desires to utilize the resources of Covington to assist 
Black Diamond in performing building code administration, plan review, and building 
inspection; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Black Diamond has agreed to compensate Covington for performing 
these services; and 

 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and provisions contained 
herein, it is agreed between Black Diamond and Covington as follows: 
 
1. Purpose.
to effectuate Black Diamond’s desire to have Covington perform these services for 
payment.   

  It is the purpose of this Agreement to establish the framework  

 
2. Services—Generally

 
.   

2.1. Approval and Priority.  All services provided by Covington to 
Black Diamond, as detailed in this Agreement, will be performed by Covington’s 
building staff as approved and directed by Covington’s Community Development 
Director (the “Director”) or Covington’s Building Official (“Building Official”) and 
subsequent to regularly assigned duties for Covington staff. 

 
2.2. Request for Services. Covington staff will maintain a regular 

schedule of office hours at Black Diamond. Unless otherwise provided for in this 
Agreement, Black Diamond shall submit all requests for additional hours of 
service in writing. Requests submitted via e-mail qualify as “in writing” for 
purposes of this Agreement.    

  
 

3. Building Official Services.  Covington will provide Building Official services in  

ATTACHMENT 1

29 of 107



- - 2 - - 

accordance with the current construction codes as adopted and amended by the State of 
Washington and Black Diamond.   

 
3.1 Building Official. Covington’s Building Official will perform the 

duties of Building Official to enforce and administer the provisions of Black 
Diamond’s building code and is authorized to render interpretations of the code in 
accordance with the adopted construction codes. 

 
3.2 Meetings.  Covington’s Building Official will attend meetings as 

requested, such as pre-application meetings, pre-submission meetings, 
enforcement hearings, and City Council meetings, to represent Black Diamond in 
the role of Building Official.  

 
3.3 Inspections, Plan Review. Covington’s building staff will perform 

inspections and plan review, duties upon request by Black Diamond and 
pursuant to the procedures provided in this Agreement.   
 

3.4 Hours of Service. In recognition of the mutual benefits of this 
Agreement, Covington’s staff will provide a minimum of forty-five hours (45) 
hours of service per month. Black Diamond may request up to sixty-five (65) 
hours per month.  Changes or alterations to the scheduled hours can be 
requested in writing by either party.   
 

4. Building Plan Review Services.
plans for code compliance upon request and in accordance with the current construction 
codes as adopted and amended by the State of Washington and Black Diamond. 

  Covington Plan Review Staff will review  

 
4.1. Black Diamond shall submit requests for any plan review services 

to the Building Official.   
4.2. If corrections or additions are required, Covington Plan Review 

Staff will draft comments and send an electronic copy to Black Diamond within 
four (4) weeks of receipt.  A longer timeline may be given to allow sufficient 
review of more time intensive projects, including but not limited to commercial 
and multi-family projects. 

4.3. If approved, Covington Plan Review Staff will indicate in writing 
that the drawings have been reviewed for code compliance. Approved sets of 
plans shall be returned to Black Diamond for issuance.  Denied or expired 
permit applications will be returned to Black Diamond after 180 days of inactivity 
on the application. 

4.4. Covington Plan Review Staff will attend meetings upon request, 
such as pre-application meetings, pre-construction meetings, and enforcement 
hearings, to represent Black Diamond in the role of Plans Examiner.  

 
5. Building Inspection Services.
building inspections, including building, plumbing, and mechanical inspections, upon 
request.  The governing codes used for inspection shall be the International Building 
Code, International Residential Code, International Mechanical Code and Uniform 
Plumbing Code as adopted by Black Diamond in the Black Diamond Municipal Code.  
Inspections will be performed according to the regular inspection schedule set by the 
Director or Building Official. 

 Covington Building Inspection Staff shall perform  

 

30 of 107



- - 3 - - 

5.1. Black Diamond shall submit requests for inspections to the 
Building Official by 4:00 pm the business day prior of the requested inspection. 
Generally, inspections will not be conducted on Fridays, unless Covington 
notifies Black Diamond that staff will be available. 

5.2. Covington Building Inspection staff shall maintain electronic 
records of inspections in Black Diamond’s permit system software and provide 
Black Diamond with copies of any correction notices and the results of the 
inspections performed within one (1) business day of the date of the inspection.  
The correction notices may be provided in electronic or paper format. 

 
5.3.  
 

6. Term of Agreement
this Agreement is ratified by the legislative body of Covington and the legislative body of 
Black Diamond.  Unless terminated by either party pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect for two (2) years from the 
effective date.  This Agreement may be extended by mutual written agreement of the 
parties subject to the ratification of such extension by the legislative body of each city.  

.  This Agreement shall become effective on the last date  

 
7. Payment to Covington
provided, Black Diamond shall pay Covington an hourly rate by specific Covington 
employee for all services provided by Covington under this Agreement, as listed in 
Exhibit A.    In years subsequent to 2013, Covington and Black Diamond shall negotiate 
and set the hourly rate for the next year of service.  A two (2) hour minimum shall be 
charged to Black Diamond for each date of any service by Covington.  After the two (2) 
hour minimum is reached for a single date, Black Diamond shall pay for each fifteen (15) 
minute increment, which shall be rounded to the nearest fifteen (15) minute increment.  
Black Diamond shall be required to pay Covington regardless of whether Black Diamond 
is paid or collects fees for the services that involved the work of Covington.  Payments 
for services rendered shall be made by Black Diamond each month within thirty (30) 
days of receipt of the billing statement from Covington.  

.  In consideration of this Agreement and the services  

 
7.1. Billing Statement.  Covington shall submit a monthly statement 

to Black Diamond that shall contain the following: 
Date of Service 

  Hours of work 
  Staff Name 
 
7.2. Billing Statement Dispute.  In the event that there is a dispute 

regarding the amount of money owed by Black Diamond to Covington, staff shall 
make every effort to resolve such dispute.  In the event that there is no 
resolution to the dispute, the disputed amount shall be placed into the registry of 
the King County Superior Court until the dispute is resolved by agreement of the 
parties or in a court with jurisdiction over the subject matter of the dispute. 

 
7.3. Reconciliation of Amount Due After Termination or 

Expiration.  Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement’s 
expiration or earlier termination, Covington shall submit to Black Diamond a 
statement as described in subsection 7.1 of this Agreement for the past quarter 
or part thereof.  Within thirty (30) days of submitting the statement, the parties 
shall reconcile the account and determine how much money Black Diamond 

31 of 107



- - 4 - - 

owes to Covington for unpaid services.  Final payment and settlement of 
accounts shall occur within ninety (90) days of the effective date of termination 
of the Agreement. 

 
8. Ownership of Property.
acquisition of any property to carry out the purposes of this Agreement.  Any property 
owned by Black Diamond shall remain the property of Black Diamond, and any property 
owned by Covington shall remain the property of Covington. 

  The parties to this Agreement do not contemplate the 

 
9. Independent Contractor.

 

  The Parties understand and agree that Covington is 
acting hereunder as an independent contractor and shall maintain control of all 
Covington employees, including but not limited to hiring, firing, discipline, evaluation, and 
establishment of standards of performance thereof.  All Covington personnel rendering 
service hereunder shall be, for all purposes, employees of Covington, although they may 
from time to time act as officers of Black Diamond.  

10. Termination
 

. 

10.1. Termination by Notice.  This Agreement may be terminated by 
either party upon it providing the other party with sixty (60) days advance written 
notice of such termination. 

10.2. Termination by Mutual Written Agreement.  This Agreement 
may be terminated at any time by mutual written agreement of the parties. 

10.3. Termination for Breach.  Covington may terminate this 
Agreement with fourteen (14) days advance written notice upon the failure of 
Black Diamond to make payments as required by this Agreement. Black 
Diamond may terminate this Agreement upon fourteen (14) days advance 
written notice in the event Covington fails to provide services as required in this 
Agreement except disputes handled per Section 7.2. 

 
11. Indemnification and Hold Harmless
and hold harmless Black Diamond and each of its employees, officials, agents, and 
volunteers from any and all losses, claims, liabilities, lawsuits, or legal judgments arising 
out of any negligent or tortious actions or inactions by Covington or any of its employees, 
officials, agents, or volunteers, while acting within the scope of the duties required by 
this Agreement.  All costs, including but not limited to attorneys fees, court fees, 
mediation fees, arbitration fees, settlements, awards of compensation, awards of 
damages of every kind, etc., shall be paid by Covington or its insurer.  This provision 
shall survive the expiration of this Agreement. This provision shall also survive and 
remain in effect in the event that a court or other entity with jurisdiction determines that 
this interlocal Agreement is not enforceable.  

.  Covington agrees to defend, indemnify,  

 
Black Diamond agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Covington and 

each of its employees, officials, agents, and volunteers from any and all losses, 
damages, claims, liabilities, lawsuits, or legal judgments arising out of any negligent or 
tortious actions or inactions by Black Diamond or any of its employees, officials, agents, 
or volunteers, while acting within the scope of the duties required by this Agreement.  All 
costs, including but not limited to attorneys fees, court fees, mediation fees, arbitration 
fees, settlements, awards of compensation, awards of damages of every kind, etc., shall 
be paid by Black Diamond or its insurer.  This provision shall survive the expiration or 
earlier termination of this Agreement. This provision shall also survive and remain in 

32 of 107



- - 5 - - 

effect in the event that a court or other entity with jurisdiction determines that this 
interlocal Agreement is not enforceable. 

 
IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE 

INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES EACH PARTY’S WAIVER OF 
IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE

 

, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY TO CARRY 
OUT THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE.  THE PARTIES 
FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS 
WAIVER. 

 
12. Miscellaneous

  
. 

12.1. Non-Waiver of Breach.  The failure of either party to insist upon 
strict performance of any of the covenants and agreements contained in this 
Agreement, or to exercise any option conferred by this Agreement in one or 
more instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of those 
covenants, agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in full 
force and effect. 

12.2. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law.  This Agreement 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington.  If the parties are unable to settle any dispute, difference or claim 
arising from the parties’ performance of this Agreement, the exclusive means of 
resolving that dispute, difference or claim, shall only be by filing suit exclusively 
under the venue, rules and jurisdiction of the King County Superior Court, King 
County, Washington, unless the parties agree in writing to an alternative dispute 
resolution process.  In any claim or lawsuit for damages arising from the parties' 
performance of this Agreement, each party shall pay all its legal costs and 
attorney's fees incurred in defending or bringing such claim or lawsuit, in 
addition to any other recovery or award provided by law; provided, however, 
nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit the parties’ right to 
indemnification under this Agreement. 

12.3. Assignment.  Any assignment of this Agreement by either party 
without the prior written consent of the non-assigning party shall be void.  If the 
non-assigning party gives its consent to any assignment, the terms of this 
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall 
be made without additional written consent. 

12.4. Modification.  No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the 
provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a 
duly authorized representative of each party and subject to ratification by the 
legislative body of each City. 

12.5. Compliance with Laws.  Each party agrees to comply with all 
local, federal and state laws, rules, and regulations that are now effective or in 
the future become applicable to this Agreement. 

12.6. Entire Agreement.  The written terms and provisions of this 
Agreement, together with any exhibits attached hereto, shall supersede all prior 
communications, negotiations, representations or agreements, either verbal or 
written of any officer or other representative of each party, and such statements 
shall not be effective or be construed as entering into or forming a part of or 
altering in any manner this Agreement.  All of the exhibits are hereby made part 

33 of 107



- - 6 - - 

of this Agreement.  Should any of the language of any exhibits to this Agreement 
conflict with any language contained in this Agreement, the language of this 
document shall prevail. 

12.7. Severability.  If any section of this Agreement is adjudicated to be 
invalid, such action shall not affect the validity of any section not so adjudicated. 

12.8. Interpretation.  The legal presumption that an ambiguous term of 
this Agreement should be interpreted against the party who prepared the 
Agreement shall not apply. 

12.9. Notice.  All communications regarding this Agreement shall be 
sent to the parties at the addresses listed on the signature page of the 
Agreement, unless notified to the contrary.  Any written notice hereunder shall 
become effective upon personal service or three (3) business days after the date 
of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given if 
sent to the addressee at the address stated in this Agreement or such other 
address as may be hereafter specified in writing. 

 
 
 IN WITNESS, the parties below execute this Agreement, which shall become 
effective on the last date entered below. 
 

COVINGTON: 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON: 
 
 
By:      
 (signature) 
Print Name: 
Its 

Derek M. Matheson  

 
            City Manager   

DATE:      
 

BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND: 
 
 
By:      
 
Print Name:
Its

  _ Rebecca Olness ___ 

 
      Mayor   

DATE:      
 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
 
Derek M. Matheson
City of Covington 

, City Manager 

16720 SE 271st Street,  Suite 100 
Covington, WA 98042 
 
 
(253) 480-2494 (telephone) 
(253) 480-2401 (facsimile) 
 

NOTICES TO BE SENT TO: 
 
Rebecca Olness
City of Black Diamond 

, Mayor  

PO Box 599 
24301 Roberts Drive 
Black Diamond, WA 98042 
 
(360) 886-5700 (telephone) 
(360) 886-2592 (facsimile) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
City Attorney 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
City Attorney 

 

34 of 107



- - 7 - - 

A. EXHIBIT A 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT SERVICES FEES 
 

 

Building Official   ….$86.00 
2013-2014 Hourly Rates 

Plans Examiner  ….$65.00 
 
 

 

35 of 107



Consent Agenda Item C-5 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 26, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  BILLING AGREEMENT WITH SOOS CREEK WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 

FOR LIFT STATION 46 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Billing Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The City Council approved a settlement agreement with the Soos Creek Water & Sewer District 
last year that allowed the district to pay the city an hourly rate in lieu of flat fees for development 
review of Lift Station 11 at SE 262nd Street and 184th Avenue SE.  The attached agreement 
extends this arrangement to LS 46 at Calhoun Pit.  The district’s commissioners are scheduled to 
approve it on March 20. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:  Do not sign the agreement and provide direction to staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The city will be fully compensated for its services. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution     X   Motion         Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to authorize the city manager to sign a billing agreement with the 
Soos Creek Water & Sewer District in substantially the form attached. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Community Development Director; Finance Director; City Attorney. 

36 of 107



  

LIFT STATION N. 46—AGREEMENT - 1 

 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF COVINGTON AND SOOS CREEK WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT  

LIFT STATION NO.46 PROJECT BILLING 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this XX day of February, 2013 (the “Effective Date”), by 

and between the City of Covington, a Washington municipal corporation (the “City”), and Soos Creek Water and 
Sewer District, a Washington municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Washington (the 
“District”), collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the District is the owner of certain real property within the city of Covington, the legal 
description of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Property”), and has commenced a development project 
on the Property to construct Lift Station No. 46 (the “Lift Station Project”); and  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 14.35 of the Covington Municipal Code (CMC), the City applies a flat fee 
for all land use and building permits based on the current fee schedule resolution; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City based its land use and building permit fee schedule upon a comprehensive fee study 

performed in 2008 and deems the land use and building permit fee schedule to be defensible and reasonable for 
the work performed; and 

 
WHEREAS, as expressed by its legal counsel, the District contends that under RCW 57.08.005, the District’s 

statutory authority to “[t]o construct, condemn and purchase, add to, maintain, and operate systems of sewers . . . 
with full authority to regulate the use and operation thereof” is an exception to the City’s building code authority 
as to those portions of the Lift Station Project that are exclusively related to the provision of sewer service by the 
District; and 

 
WHEREAS, in recognition of both the City and the District’s desire to move forward with the Lift Station 

Project to meet the growing needs of both the District and the City, the District and the City are now willing to 
compromise and enter into this Settlement Agreement on the terms stated herein; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements set forth herein, and other valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the City and the District hereby agree 
as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. Services to be Performed. To the extent required by the CMC and state statutes, notwithstanding the  
exceptions provided in Section 2 herein, and following the City’s standard development processes, the City shall 
perform all review, permitting, and inspection services necessary to complete the Lift Station Project work.  
 

2. Alternate Inspection Process. Pursuant to Sections 104.4 and 104.10, 110, and 1704 of the International 
Building Code (IBC), when applicable, in lieu of City inspection of internal lift station structures (e.g. underground 
vaults and wet wells), the District may use an alternative inspection process and/or special inspector to perform 
required inspections of the internal lift station and provide the City reports of said inspections. The City will 
consider the use of alternate and/or special inspectors for additional inspections upon the request and 
demonstration by the District that such inspections meet the criteria required under this Agreement and the 
applicable IBC section.   
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1

37 of 107



  

LIFT STATION N. 46—AGREEMENT - 2 

3. Hourly Rate. For the services outlined in Section 1 herein, the City shall charge the District an hourly  
rate pursuant to the City’s rate sheet in effect at the time of the work performed. The City shall bill all Lift Station 
Project work in quarter hour increments.  

 
4. Billing. The City shall provide the District a monthly invoice that contains the date, work task, and time  

billed for each task completed in the preceding month. The District shall remit payment owed to the City within 
forty-five (45) days of receipt of the invoice.  In the event the District contests any invoice, the District shall still 
remit payment, but may do so under protest and without prejudice to a claim for refund.   
 

5. Disputes. In the event there is a dispute regarding any of the Parties’ responsibilities or obligations under  
this Agreement, the appointed administrators of the Parties shall make every effort to resolve such dispute by 
mutual agreement.  In the event there is no mutually agreed resolution to the dispute, the appointed 
administrators shall forward the dispute to each Party’s City Manager/General Manager for resolution.  In the 
event there is no resolution after review by the Parties’ City Manager/General Manager, the Parties shall seek 
mediation through a mutually agreed mediation service and each Party shall bear its own costs for mediation. If 
mediation is unsuccessful, either Party may pursue any legal remedy available from a court of competent 
jurisdiction. Any dispute that has gone to mediation, and mediation was unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, shall 
be grounds for any Party to terminate this Agreement for material breach. 
 

6. Term. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect from the Effective Date and ending upon the final  
completion of the Lift Station Project and the services pursuant to Section 1 herein, but in any event no later than 
December 31, 2015 (“Term”), unless earlier terminated under the provisions of this Agreement.  
 

7. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party, with or without cause, upon thirty (30)  
days written notice to the other. The City shall be entitled to payment of all services performed to the date of 
termination. After the termination date, any remaining City review, permitting, or inspection services required to 
complete the Lift Station Project shall be billed pursuant to the City’s land use and permitting fee schedule in effect 
at the time the work is performed; the District shall be entitled to a credit for partially completed services paid for 
by the District prior to the date of termination.  
 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

8. Mutual Release of Claims. In consideration of the obligations of the City and the District in this  
Agreement, and conditioned upon the City’s and the District’s fulfillment of the obligations listed above, the 
District agrees to release the City, including its elected officials, agents, officers, representatives, attorneys, 
employees, successors, and assigns, and the City agrees to release the District, including its elected officials, 
agents, officers, representatives, attorneys, employees, successors, and assigns, from any and all claims or 
potential claims, demands, damages, liabilities, civil or administrative examinations, investigations, enforcement 
actions, or causes of action of any kind or nature whatsoever, known or unknown, which could be brought under 
any local, state, or federal laws or regulations by the District or the City, arising from the City’s collection of permit 
fees. The City and the District acknowledge and represent that the terms of this Agreement have been jointly 
negotiated and that each Party enters into this Agreement voluntarily. The Parties agree that this Agreement is 
authorized under law and both the City and the District waive any claim that this Agreement is invalid or illegal. 
The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that this Agreement neither indicates nor constitutes an admission of 
any liability or wrongdoing of any nature whatsoever by any Party hereto. 

 
9. Severability. Should any portion of this Agreement be found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be  

unenforceable and/or invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect to the extent 
practicable to effectuate the spirit and intent of the Parties.  Any ambiguities within this Agreement shall not be 
presumptively construed against either Party. 

 
10. Successors. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties, their respective  

heirs, executors, successors, administrators, and assigns of the Parties hereto.  

38 of 107



  

LIFT STATION N. 46—AGREEMENT - 3 

 
11. Governing Law/Venue. This Agreement shall be governed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of  

the State of Washington. Venue for any action to enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be in King County. 
 
12. Authority. The City and the District each represents and warrants to the other that it has the authority,  

and is duly authorized, to execute and deliver this Agreement and that the persons signing on its behalf are duly 
authorized to do so. 

 
13. Amendments. This Agreement may not be amended or modified except in writing and signed by both  

Parties.  
  

14. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement of the Parties with respect to the  
subject matter hereof and is in lieu of all other proceedings related to this matter which may be available to the 
Parties. There are no other agreements, promises, representations, or warranties, oral or written, except as 
expressly set for herein.  

 
15. No Third Party. This Agreement is made and entered into for the benefit of the Parties hereto and their  

successors and assigns. No other person or entity is an intended third party beneficiary. No other person or entity 
shall have any right of action under this Agreement.  

 
16. Attorney Fees. In the event that either Party resorts to litigation to enforce any term of this Agreement,  

the substantially prevailing party in any such litigation shall be entitled to an award or reasonable attorney fees, 
together with actual court costs, expended in such litigation. 

 
17. Full Understanding. The Parties each acknowledge, represent, and agree that they have read this  

Agreement; that they fully understand the terms thereof; and that they have been fully advised by their 
independent legal counsel or have had the opportunity to be so advised in connection with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 
18. Notice. Any notice or other written communication to any Party under this Agreement will be effective  

only if in writing and delivered (1) personally, (2) by certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, 
(3) by facsimile transmission with written evidence confirming receipt, or (4) by overnight courier (such as UPS, 
FedEx, or Airborne Express) to the following addresses: 

 
If to the District: 
Soos Creek Water & Sewer District 
14616 SE 192

nd
 Street 

P.O. Box 58039 
Renton, WA  98058-1039 
Attn: Ron Speer, District Manager 
Phone: 253-630-9900 
Fax: 253-630-5289 
 
If to the City: 
City of Covington 
16720 SE 271

st
 Street, Suite 100 

Covington, WA  98042 
Attn: Derek Matheson, City Manager 

 
The addresses and addressees to which notice is to be given may be changed by written notice given in the 
manner specified in this Agreement and actually received by the addressee.  

 
19. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and as executed shall  

39 of 107



  

LIFT STATION N. 46—AGREEMENT - 4 

constitute one Agreement, binding on all Parties, notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatory to the same 
counterpart.  

 
20. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are inserted for reference only and shall not be construed to  

expand, limit, or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year written above. 
 
CITY OF COVINGTON       SOOS CREEK WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 
   
 
________________________________    ___________________________________ 
By: Derek Matheson      By: Ron Speer 
Its: City Manager       Its: District Manager 
        

 
Attest:             
 
_________________________________   
Sharon Scott, City Clerk     

 

40 of 107



Consent Agenda Item C-6 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  March 26, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: CONSIDER AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN 

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES WITH GRAY & OSBORNE FOR ON-CALL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
1. Local Agency Standard Consultant Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY:  Don Vondran, PE, City Engineer 
 
EXPLANATION: 
On January 18, 2013, the City advertised a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for On-Call 
Engineering Services.  The RFQ was advertised in the Covington Reporter on January 18th and 
January 25th and was also posted on the City’s website.  Submittals from interested Consultants 
were due on February 8, 2013.  The RFQ was advertised for on-call services but it also included 
specific projects with federal and state funding that could be assigned Task Orders.  Due to the 
small nature of these projects, and in discussions with WSDOT (federal funds administrator), it 
was determined that this would be the best way to meet federal requirements and not need to 
advertise for the design of every single project. 
 
There were two consultants that submitted qualifications for consideration.  They were TranTech 
out of Bellevue and Gray & Osborne out of Seattle.  The submittals were reviewed and scored 
and both consultants were interviewed the week of February 18th.  The scores from the 
submittals and the interview process were tallied and the unanimous recommendation was to 
select Gray & Osborne. 
 
Because the work involves federal funds, the consultant contract must be the form documented 
in WSDOT’s Local Agency Guidelines (LAG) Manual in order to receive reimbursement.  The 
agreement will be set-up as an on-call agreement with a negotiated hourly rate, not a fixed 
amount.  The individual Task Orders will then establish the maximum amount payable and the 
completion dates for each task. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The primary reasons for the on-call contract were to begin design on projects that we received 
grant funding and for SWM projects that we have capital funds in the budget.  Staff is not only 
requesting authorization for the City Manager to sign an agreement with Gray & Osborne but 
also authorization for approval of individual Task Orders based on the following: 
 

• A Task Order for the design of the Citywide Safety Project estimated at $25,000 that is 
fully reimbursable (no match) from Federal Safety Grant HSIP-000S(338); 

41 of 107



• A Task Order for the design of the 156th/160th Avenue Rehabilitation Project estimated at 
$40,000 that is fully reimbursable (no match) from the 2012 Supplemental Transportation 
Budget (Federal Funds); and 

• A Task Order for the design of the Woodlands Stormwater Capital Project estimated at 
$53,500, which is in the 2013 SWM Budget under Annual Facility Rehabilitation. 

 
Additional task orders or amendments will follow adopted financial policies and procedures for 
authorization. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance               Resolution       X    Motion             Other  
 

Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to execute an agreement with Gray & 
Osborne for on-call engineering services. 
 
Council member ______________ moves, Council member ______________ 
seconds, to authorize the City Manager to sign Task Orders in the amount of 
$118,500 for the Citywide Safety Project, the 156th Avenue Rehabilitation 
Project and the Woodlands Stormwater Capital Project. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager, City Attorney, Finance Director 

42 of 107



ATTACHMENT 1

43 of 107



44 of 107



45 of 107



46 of 107



47 of 107



48 of 107



49 of 107



50 of 107



51 of 107



52 of 107



53 of 107



54 of 107



55 of 107



56 of 107



57 of 107



58 of 107



59 of 107



60 of 107



61 of 107



62 of 107



63 of 107



64 of 107



65 of 107



66 of 107



67 of 107



Agenda Item 1 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 26, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:   APPOINTMENTS TO THE HUMAN SERVICES COMMISSION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 
                
ATTACHMENTS:  See Interview Schedule and Applications provided separately. 

 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk  
 
EXPLANATION:   
Human Services Commission – Seven Members (Two of which must be Youth): 

• Three positions open (all adults).  Both youth members have opted to serve a second year 
without reapplying per Ordinance No. 10-13.* 

 
*Youth Terms:  Each of the youth members shall serve for a term of one year with an option to 
serve a second year without reapplying. 

 
 Name of Applicant                   Resides or Works  
 
Joyce Bowling (interviewed March 26)      Resides Inside Covington  
Tracy Sorensen (interviewed March 26)** Resides Inside Covington 
Lesley Schlesinger (interviewed March 26) Resides Inside Covington 
Haris Ahmad (interviewed March 26) (currently Pos. 7) Resides Outside Covington (but 

within three-mile radius – also 
works in Covington) 

 
**Note:  Tracy Sorensen’s first choice is to be appointed to the Human Services Commission.  Her 
second choice is to be appointed to the Arts Commission.  (Arts Commission appointments to be 
held at a future meeting.) 
 
NOTE: Ordinance Nos. 10-13, 04-05 § 1, and 22-02 § 1) Membership, terms, residence 
requirement:  “Three members shall be adults residing or working within the City of Covington, 
two shall be adults residing inside or outside of the City of Covington but within a three-mile 
radius of the City limits and two shall be youth members between the ages of 14 and 18 years at 
the start of their terms residing in or within a three-mile radius of the City of Covington. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not appoint at this time and direct staff to continue to advertise for additional applicants to be 
considered for the open positions. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:  ____ Ordinance            Resolution       X     Motions            Other  

 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 3 on the 
Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2016. 
 

68 of 107



Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 6 on the 
Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2016. 
 
Councilmember ______________ moves, Councilmember ________________ 
seconds, to appoint _________________ to fill open Position No. 7 on the 
Human Services Commission with a term expiring March 31, 2016. 
 

REVIEWED BY: Derek Matheson, City Manager  
 Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant 
 Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager 
 Victoria Throm, Personnel & Human Services Analyst 

69 of 107



Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 26, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  CONSIDER CITIZEN SURVEY QUESTIONS  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 2013 Draft Survey (to be provided prior to meeting) 
2. 2009 Survey Results 

 
PREPARED BY:   
Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Staff is preparing to launch the 2013 Covington Citizen Survey to be conducted by Elway 
Research. In order to gauge any change in sentiment among citizens, a majority of the questions 
have been carried over from the previous survey conducted in 2009. Some new questions have 
been prepared to better understand citizen priorities for transportation, parks and recreation as 
well as other city services. The current budget allows for roughly 50 questions, resulting in an 
approximately 20-minute-long survey. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1) Modify the existing questions. 
2) Add questions (which would cause us to go over budget and lengthen the survey time if 

other questions aren’t deleted). 
3) Do not conduct a survey. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
$20,000 (already reserved in the 2013 budget) 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:        Ordinance       Resolution       Motion             Other 
 

 
PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF 

 
REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 

70 of 107



 

City of Covington 

CITIZEN OPINIONS OF CITY  
AND CITY GOVERNMENT 

October, 2009 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2

71 of 107



  

 

 

 
City of Covington 

Citizen Opinions of City and 
City Government 

October, 2009 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. Introduction......................................................................1 
Methods..........................................................................2 
Respondent Profile ........................................................3 

2. Key Findings.....................................................................4 

3. Findings............................................................................6 

4. Discussion..................................................................... 20 

5. Appendix........................................................................ 21 
Questionnaire with data 
Cross-tabulation Tables ...........Under Separate Cover 

 

72 of 107



October 2009 . 

 

 
City of Covington 

Citizen Opinions of City 
and City Government 

 
October 2009 

INTRODUCTION 

This report summarizes the results of a telephone survey conducted by Elway 
Research for the City of Covington. The survey interviewed Covington 
residents about the quality of life in Covington, priorities for the future, and 
the level of satisfaction with city government and city services. Specifically, 
the following subjects were addressed: 
 Perceptions regarding the overall quality of life in Covington; feelings of 

safety; and the appropriateness for families. 
 Preferred priorities for City government. 
 Satisfaction with various departments and services, including specific on 

police service. 
 Inclination to support or oppose a list of projects that would probably 

require more taxation. 
 Sources used and desired, to get information about City government. 

Demographic information was included in order to profile those with certain 
opinions. 

This report includes Key Findings and a narrative summary of the findings, 
with analysis. The narrative is followed by annotated charts of the pertinent 
survey results. A complete set of cross-tabulation tables is presented under 
separate cover. 

73 of 107



 City of Covington 2 

October 2009 . 

METHODS 

SAMPLE: 300 adult heads of households inside the city 
limits of Covington. Every household in 
Covington was called in which there is at least 
one registered voter and for which we were 
able to obtain a telephone number. 

TECHNIQUE: Telephone Survey 
FIELD DATES: October 22-27, 2009 

MARGIN OF ERROR: 6% at the 95% confidence interval. That is, 
in theory, had all similarly qualified Covington 
residents been interviewed, there is a 95% 
probability that the results would be within 
6% of the results in this survey. 

DATA COLLECTION: Calls were made during weekday evenings 
and weekend days. Trained, professional 
interviewers under supervision conducted all 
interviews.  Up to four attempts were made to 
contact a head of household at each number 
in the sample before a substitute number was 
called. Questionnaires were edited for 
completeness, and a percentage of each 
interviewer’s calls were re-called for 
verification. 

It must be kept in mind that survey research cannot predict the future.  Although 
great care was employed in the design, execution and analysis of this survey, 
these results can be interpreted only as representing the answers given by these 
respondents to these questions at the time they were interviewed. 

74 of 107



 City of Covington 3 

October 2009 . 

RESPONDENT PROFILE 

In interpreting these findings, it is important to keep in mind the 
characteristics of the people actually interviewed. This table presents a 
profile of the 300 respondents in the survey. 

Note: Throughout this report, percentages may not add to 100%, due to rounding. 

 
GENDER: 45%

55%
Male 
Female 

AGE: 10%
21%
25%
19%
22%

18-34 
35-44 
45-54 
55-64 
65+ 

LENGTH OF RESIDENCE: 2%
21%
23%
19%
34%

0-1 Year 
2-5 Years 
6-12 Years 
13-20 Years 
20+ years 

OWN / RENT: 92%
6%

Own 
Rent 

HOUSEHOLD TYPE: 43% 
34%

6%
16%

Couple with children at home 
Couple with no children at home 
Single with children at home 
Single with no children at home 

ANNUAL HOUSEHOLD 
INCOME: 

9%
14%
18%
14%
21%
23%

$35,000 or less 
Over $35,000 to $50,000 
Over $50,000 to $74,000 
$75,000 to $99,000 
$100,000 or more 
No response 
 

 

75 of 107



 City of Covington 4 

October 2009 . 

KEY FINDINGS 
 

 2 in 3 respondents said their tax dollars were being “well spent,” a high 
proportion for local governments. 

 Residents generally satisfied with life in the city in most ways, but not 
usually to the utmost degree:  

 53% rated the city’s quality of life in the top three points of the 10 point 
scale, but only 9% said that it was a “10,” or “excellent.” 

 Almost all agreed with three positive statements about the city, but usually 
not “strongly:” 
95% agreed that “Covington is a good place for families”  

62% “agreed;” 33% strongly agreed. 
91% agreed with “I feel safe in my neighborhood,” (60%; 31%). 
93% agreed with “I feel safe in Covington” (62%; 31%). 

 Just over half (53%) said that the City was doing a “good” (43%) or 
“excellent” (10%) job of keeping them informed.  

 4 in 10 said “only fair” (32%) or “poor” (11%). 

 Two in 3 get their information about city government from the Covington 
Reporter. 

 The same proportion (53%) rated the city’s performance in providing 
residents “the opportunity to be involved in decisions” as “good” (43%) or 
“excellent” (10%).  

 37% said “only fair” (26%) or “poor” (11%)  

 “Grades” for most services ranged from "B-" to "C." 

 The highest went to police services, including: 
3.1 for "overall feeling of safety in the community,"  
3.0 for "overall quality of police service," and 
3.0 for "the time it takes them to respond to a call." 

 The lowest averages were: 
2.2 on the 4-point scale for "Zoning and Land Use Planning," 
2.3 for "Streets and Traffic System," 
2.4 for "Recreation Programs," and 
2.4 for "Permit Services." 

76 of 107



 City of Covington 5 

October 2009 . 

 Many respondents did not know enough to grade many services, including: 

 Permit services (34% said they did not know),  
 Customer service at city hall (33%),  
 The aquatics programs (32%), and 
 "Emergency preparation" (30%). 

 1 in 3 had contact with a city agency or official in the last 12 months; 
those that had any contact tended to give it an average “B” grade. 

 Police Response, Traffic Enforcement, and “Communicating with the 
public" were the top priorities for the City government: 

 “Police Response” was named a “top” priority by 39%, and a “high” priority 
by 41%. 

 “Traffic Enforcement” (26% Top and 35% High). 

 “Communicating with the Public” (25% Top and 37% High). 

 Streets had highest level of potential support among possible programs 
requiring tax increases.  

 Of 8 services tested that would require a tax increase, 4 had potential 
support of more that 50%, including: 
66% for “Improved streets and traffic flow,” 

(31% strong support; 35% said “maybe”); 
56% for Parks, Tails and open Space 

(20% “strong and 36% “maybe”) 
56% for sidewalks (16% strong and 40% “maybe”) 
53% for “more recreation” (21% strong and 32% “maybe”) 

 Improved streets and traffic flow was the only service included that had 
more “strong support” than “strong opposition.” 

 The strongest opposition was to commuter rail and a town center: 
60% opposed Commuter Rail (39% strongly), and 
63% opposed a town center (34% strongly.) 

77 of 107



 City of Covington 6 

October 2009 . 

FINDINGS 

 

Major findings are presented in the following section in the form of 
annotated graphs and bullets.  The full results are in detailed cross-

tabulations under separate cover. 

78 of 107



 City of Covington 7 

October 2009 . 

Average Quality of Life:  
8 on a 10 Point Scale 

11% 1% 1% 0% 1% 1%7%22%32%12%9% 3%

EXCELLENT -9- -8- -7- -6- MID -4- -3- -2- -1- POOR NO OPIN

AVERAGE = 7.9

 

Question 3: Overall, how would you rate the quality of life in Covington? Please give a rating on a 
scale of zero to 10, where 10 means you think the city has an “excellent” quality of life, a “0” means 
it has a “poor” quality of life. A rating of 5 is in the middle. 

 Satisfaction with the overall quality of life in Covington went up in the 
middle incomes: 

 The average ratings from those with incomes both under $50,000 and over 
$75,000 was "7". This compares to 

 A "9" average from those with annual household incomes between 
$50,000 and $75,000. 

79 of 107



 City of Covington 8 

October 2009 . 

Almost All Agreed That  
Covington is Good for Families 

62%

33%

1%4%

Strongly Agree
Agree
No Opinion
Disagree
Strongly Disagree

 

Question 4a: I am going to read a series of statements about life in Covington. For each one, tell 
me whether you Agree Strongly, Agree, Disagree or Disagree Strongly. The first one, is Covington 
is a good place for families? 

 Younger respondents were most likely to strongly agree: 
43% of respondents under age 34 strongly agreed that Covington was a 

good place for families, compared to  
28% age 45 and older. 

 Those with the lowest incomes also tended more to strongly agree: 
39% of those with incomes under $50,000 strongly agreed vs. 
29% of those with higher incomes. 

 Even 9 in 10 of those who had thought the overall quality of life was "7" or 
lower still agreed that Covington was a good place for families. 

 Those with and without children living in the household agreed similarly to 
this statement. 

  

80 of 107



 City of Covington 9 

October 2009 . 

Almost All Feel Safe 

31%

31%

60%

62%

8%

5%

Feel Safe in
Neighborhood

Feel Safe in   
Covington

Strongly Agree Agree No Opinion Disagree Strongly Disagree

 

Question 4b and 4c: I am going to read a series of statements about life in Covington. For each 
one, tell me whether you Agree Strongly, Agree, Disagree or Disagree Strongly. 2.) I feel safe in my 
neighborhood; 3.) I feel safe in Covington. 

 There was a slight tendency for households without children to feel safer: 

 34% without children in the household strongly agreed that they felt safe in 
their neighborhood, vs. 28% of those with children. 

 34% strongly agreed that they felt safe in Covington, vs. 28% of those with 
children. 

81 of 107



 City of Covington 10 

October 2009 . 

Most Paid At Least Some  
Attention to City Government 

27%

17% 13%

43%

A lot
Some
Not very Much
Almost No Attention

 

Question 5: Let’s talk about the City Government. First, in general, how much attention would you 
say you pay to Covington City government? Would you say you pay…? 

 Most likely to have paid a lot of attention were those 65+: 
19% said that they paid a lot of attention, compared to  
7% of those under 35. 

 Most likely to have paid almost no attention were those under 35: 
33% did, compared to  
13% over 65. 

 Another 30% of those under 35 paid “not very much” attention, bringing 
the total to 63% of the youngest group who paid little or no attention. 

82 of 107



 City of Covington 11 

October 2009 . 

2 in 3 Had No Recent Contact: Grade Averaged "B" 

2%

35%

63%
Yes
No
No Opin

 

Question 6: Have you had any contact with a city agency or official in the last 12 months?  

34%

39%

5%8%

14% A - Excellent
B
C
D
F - Failing

 
Question 7: If you were to give that person a letter grade for helpfulness and courtesy, what grade 
would you give him or her:  A for Excellent, B Good, C Satisfactory, D Unsatisfactory, F for Poor? 

 Most likely to have had contact were ages 55 – 64 (45% did) and those 
with household incomes of $75,000 or more (40%). 

83 of 107



 City of Covington 12 

October 2009 . 

Police, Traffic, and Communication Top Priorities 

39%

26%

25%

18%

17%

14%

12%

7%

41%

35%

37%

33%

34%

28%

25%

19%

16%

11%

31%

28%

32%

38%

35%

36%

49%

39%

6%

5%

9%

10%

12%

8%

11%

8%

12%

15%

17%

25%

2%

2%

2%

3%

3%

4% 4%

2%

5%

5%

Police Response

Traffic Enforcement

Communicating with the
Public.

Enforcing City Codes

Street and Sidewalk
Construction

Surface Water Management

Permitting Services

Park and Trail Construction

Aquatics Programs

Top High Med No Opin Low Not

 

Question 8: Next I am going to read a list of areas of responsibility for Covington city government. I 
would like you to rate each one in terms of its priority for city government. As I read each item, tell 
me whether you think that should be a Top Priority for Covington City Government, A High Priority, 
Medium, Low or that should Not be a priority for Covington City Government. The first one is…? 

 There was a variety of demographic differences: 

 Those under age 45 were more concerned with street and sidewalk 
construction (20% gave it a “top” rating, vs. 11% of those older.) 

 Women were more likely than men to give “top” ratings to “enforcing city 
codes (22% vs. 13%). 

 Surface water was particularly not a top priority for those 65+ (only 7% said 
“top,” compared to 16% of those younger.) 

 Traffic enforcement was more of a priority with lower income groups:  
39% with under $50,000 in income said “top,” vs.  
27% with $50,000 to $75,000 and  
14% with $75,000 or more. 

 Concern with police response also went down with income, from 
50% of those with under $50,000 calling it a “top” priority, to  
42% with $50,000 - $75,000 and  
25% with $75,000 or more. 

 Not surprisingly, those who paid at least some attention to city government 
more often named communication as a "top" priority  
(29%, compared to 19% who paid not much/no attention.) 

84 of 107



 City of Covington 13 

October 2009 . 

"B-" to "C" Averages Earned by Most Services  
if Grade Given; Many Not Sure How to Grade 

16%
16%
14%
14%
13%
13%
12%
11%
10%
9%
9%
9%
8%
7%

51%
38%
45%
44%
46%

35%
33%
33%

51%
40%
38%

35%
43%

30%
39%

27%
29%

24%
25%

23%
21%

28%
14%
20%
23%

27%
30%

31%
26%

27%
25%

27%
26%

20%

5%

11%

14%

33%

30%

27%

7%

9%

6%

24%

32%

18%

26%

34%

4%

9%

6%

4%

7%

3%

3%

3%

3%

7%

9%

5%

14%

4%

6%

9%

6%

3%

6%

2%

3%

4%

3%

3%

5%

7%

2%

9%

4%

6%

5%5%

6%

6%

Street Cleaning and Maintenance

Snow & Ice Removal

Business Attraction and Retention

Stormwater/Flood Management

Sidewalks

Customer Service at City Hall

Emergency Preparation

Enforcing City Codes

Landscaping, Parks/Grounds Maintenance

Capital Projects

Amount of Parks and Open Space

Public Meetings

Streets and Traffic System

Aquatics Programs

Recreation Programs

Zoning and Land Use Planning

Permit Services

A-Excellent B-Good C-Satis No Opin D-Unsatis F-Poor

 

Question 9: Now let’s talk about some specific areas that Covington City Government operates 
using tax dollars.  As we did before I’d like you to give Covington City Government a letter grade for 
each area: A for Excellent, B for Good, C for Satisfactory, D for Unsatisfactory, F for poor.  What 
grade would you give the city for…? 

 The services with the highest proportions of "A" grades were "street 
cleaning/maintenance" and "street cleanings/snow removal): 

 16% gave an "A" for each, with 95% or more able to rate them. 

 The highest average was given to Customer Service at City Hall: 

 It was 2.8 on the 4-point scale, among those giving a rating. 

 The most bad grades (D and F) went to "Streets and Traffic System:" 

 14% gave it a "D," and 9% an "F," with the average 2.3, or "C." 

 The youngest respondents were least likely to know enough to give grades.  
For example: 

53% could not grade customer service at city hall, 
50% said the same about permit services. 
43% about enforcing city codes. 
40% about public meetings. 
37% about zoning land use. 
37% about police response time. 

AVERAGE
2.75 
2.51 
2.72 
2.72 
2.59 
2.81 
2.71 
2.62 
2.69 
2.46 
2.36 
2.59 
2.27 
2.54 
2.43 
2.23 
2.36 

 

85 of 107



 City of Covington 14 

October 2009 . 

Most Police Services Graded "B" 

30%

27%

22%

22%

14%

48%

48%

52%

35%

30%

16%

16%

17%

11%

24%

6%

5%

28%

23% 6% 4%

2%

2%

3%

2%

Overall feeling of safety in
the community

The overall quality of service
they provide

Maintaining traffic safety in
Covington

The time it takes them to
respond to a call

The number of officers

A-Excellent B-Good C-Satis No Opin D-Unsatis F-Poor

 

Question 10: Let’s talk specifically about police services in Covington. Using the letter grades as 
before, what grade would you give police services in Covington for…? 

 Those who had rated the "overall quality of life" in Covington highly (8 to 
10) gave better grades to some police services: 

40% gave the "overall feeling of safety" an "A," vs.  
18% of those who rated the quality of life lower, and 

38% gave the overall quality of police service an "A," vs. 14%. 

 Again, lack of knowledge was centered on those younger: 

 33% of those under 55 did not know enough to grade response time, 
compared to 

 22% of those 55 or older. 

 However, all ages were equally likely to have no opinion about the number 
of officers. 
 

AVERAGE 

3.05 

3.04 

2.94 

3.02 

2.57 

86 of 107



 City of Covington 15 

October 2009 . 

Tax Support Strongest for Streets & Traffic 

31%

21%

20%

16%

16%

13%

11%

10%

40%

31%

24%

31%

23%

3%

3%

3%

4%

28%

27%

29%

13%

22%

22%

22%

23%

39%

27%

34%

36%

32%

35%

22%

21%

21%

24%

20%Improved Streets and Traffic
Flow

More Recreation

Parks, Trails and Open
Space

Sidewalks

Animal Control

Commuter Rail

More Community Events

A Town Center

Strongly Sup Maybe Sup No Opin Probably Opp Strongly Opp

 

Question 11: Now I am going to read a list of things that some people have said they would like 
Covington city government to do. Of course, all city services cost money. So as I read this list, 
please tell me how willing you would be – if at all – to support an increase in taxes to maintain, 
improve or provide that service. Tell me if you would be Strongly Inclined to support, Maybe 
Inclined to support, Probably Inclined to Oppose or Strongly Inclined to Oppose? 

 Most likely to strongly support streets/traffic were: 

 Those with children living at home (40%) and 

 Those with incomes between $50,000 and $75,000 (42%).  

 Support for commuter rail went down with age: 
21% of those under age 45 strongly supported commuter rail, vs. 
12% of 45-54 year olds, 9% of those 55-64, and 6% 65+. 

 Considering all the proposals together: 
34% of respondents opposed almost all of the proposals, 
25% supported all or almost all, and 
41% said "maybe," or a mix of support and "opposed" responses. 

 Those age 65+ were most often opposed: 
57% of this age group always or almost always were opposed, vs. 
24% of those younger. 

 Those with children still at home were most supportive of all: 
30% always or almost always were supportive, vs. 20%. 
27% were always or almost always opposed, vs. 41%. 

87 of 107



 City of Covington 16 

October 2009 . 

The Covington Reporter  
Dominated Information Sources 

68%
35%
33%

27%
21%

14%
13%
13%

4%
2%

3%

9%

14%
15%
19%

Covington Reporter

City Website

Friends, family, neighbors

Mailings From City

During City Events

Flyers, Posters Around the City

City E-mail List

Neighborhood Meetings

City Meetings

Calling or Visiting City Hall

Flyers that kids bring home from school

City Commissioner/Council Member

Facebook

Other

No Ans

 

Question 12: In terms of keeping citizens informed about what is happening in city government -- 
How good a job do you think the City of Covington does at that?  Would you say…? 
Question 13: We are interested in how people get information about City Government here in 
Covington. Which of the following have been useful to you to learn about city government? 

 Usefulness of the Covington Reporter went up with income: 
78% of those with incomes of $75,000+ named the Reporter, vs. 
73% earning between $50,000 and $75,000, and 
60% with under $50,000.  

 Usefulness of the web site went down with age: 
46% of the youngest (under age 45) found the web-site useful, vs. 
38% of 45 – 54 year olds, and 
12% of those age 65 or older. 

 Respondents who said that they paid at least some attention to city 
government were more likely than others to find several sources of 
information useful, including: 

 Meetings (21%, vs. 6% of those not paying much attention), 

 E-mail (20% vs. 10%), 

 Mailings (17% vs. 9%), 

 Neighborhood meetings (17% vs. 9%), and 

 The City Commissioner/Council (13% vs. 4%). 

88 of 107



 City of Covington 17 

October 2009 . 

Most Could Not Think of Other Information Sources 

9%
5%

56%
17%

3%

3%

3%

2%

Send E-Mails

Mailings 

Flyers In The Mail

Town Meeting

Newsletter

Newspaper

TV Ads

Schools

Billboards

Other

None / No

No Ans

 

Question 14: Are there any other ways you think the City can use to communicate with our 
residents that we aren’t already doing? [IF YES] What would those ways be?  

 E-mails showed the most variation, being desired more by: 

 Those with the highest incomes 
18% of those with incomes of $75,000+ vs.  
  9% with middle incomes and  
  1% with less than $50,000, 

 Men: 
14%, compared to  
  5% of women, and 

 Those with children in the household (12% vs. 5% without children).  

89 of 107



 City of Covington 18 

October 2009 . 

Most Think Opportunity to Be Involved Good+ 

43%

10%11%
11%

26%

Excellent
Good
Fair
Poor
No Opin

 

Question 15: How would you rate the city’s performance in providing residents the opportunity to be 
involved in decisions that affect city government?  How good a job do you think the City of 
Covington does at that?  Would you say…? 

 Those with the highest impressions of Covington's overall quality of life (8 
to 10 on the 10-point scale) were most likely to think more highly of the 
opportunity to be involved: 

63% said that it was good or excellent, vs. 
40% of those who rated the quality of life lower. 

 Interestingly, responses did not vary according to how informed the 
respondent felt. 

 There were no demographic variations. 

90 of 107



 City of Covington 19 

October 2009 . 

Over 2 in 3 Think Their Local Tax $ Well Spent 

68%

21%
10%

Well Spent
Not Well Spent
No Opin

 

Question 16: Finally, thinking now about all the things we have talked about, as a citizen of 
Covington, do you think that your tax dollars are being well spent here?  Or not? 

  Most likely to say "well spent" were: 

 Those who rated the overall quality of life an 8 to 10: 
81% did, compared to 
54% who rated it 7 or below 

 Those with children: 
73%, compared to 
63% with no children at home. 

91 of 107



 City of Covington 20 

October 2009 . 

DISCUSSION 
 

The City of Covington is thought by its residents to be a safe, family-friendly 
place to live. Very few residents are dissatisfied with the city, and two in three 
survey respondents said that their city tax dollars are well spent by the city 
government. 

Just over half of these respondents said they paid attention to city 
government and just one-third had had any direct contact with it. However, 
more than half said that the city does a good job of providing them with 
opportunities to be involved and more than half said the city does a good job 
keeping them informed. Only about a quarter could think of any other way city 
government could communicate with them. 

Of those who did have direct contact with city government, most had a good 
experience: nearly three-quarters graded their experience an “A” (39%) or a 
“B” (34%).  

Traffic is clearly on the minds of Covington residents. “Streets and traffic 
system” ranked 13th on a list of 17 city services graded by survey 
respondents. Of all the services graded, "street and traffic system" received 
the most "D" and "F" grades. “Traffic enforcement” was ranked as the #2 
priority for city government.  And “improved streets and traffic flow” garnered 
the highest level of potential support among eight city improvements that 
would require a tax increase.  

The police department was a particular focus of these citizens. Most 
respondents said they feel safe in Covington and rate the overall quality of 
police service quite high, and they clearly want to keep it that way. Police 
response time was graded a solid “B” (although it had the highest number or 
people who could not answer at 28%), and was rated as the top priority for 
city government. 

Overall satisfaction with Covington city government is quite good – 
particularly among those who have contact with the city. An obvious 
challenge is increasing citizen awareness of city government and its services. 
Many city services were unknown to a quarter or more of these respondents. 

92 of 107



 City of Covington 21 

October 2009 . 

APPENDIX 

93 of 107



Agenda Item 3  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 26, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  UPDATE ON COVINGTON AQUATIC CENTER RENOVATION  
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Conceptual Design Documents 
 
PREPARED BY:  Ethan Newton, Aquatics Supervisor 
 
EXPLANATION: 
During 2012 the City received a grant for renovating the Covington Aquatic Center from the 
Washington State Department of Commerce as part of the 2012 Jobs Now Act. The scope of 
work for this project includes improvements to the outdoor plaza, roof, exterior paint, and rental 
room. This update shall brief the Council on the status of the project as it is nearing the 
completion of the design phase and will soon be entering the construction phase. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
This is a discussion item only for which no alternatives are provided. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
This is a discussion item only for which no financial impact is provided. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution         Motion    X   Other 
 

PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF 
 

REVIEWED BY:  Parks and Recreation Director, City Manager 
 

94 of 107



Update on Covington Aquatic Center Renovation Concept Design Doc.’s Page 1 of 3 
 
 
 
Project Description 
 
This is a renovation project at the Covington Aquatic Center that includes improvements to the 
outdoor plaza, roof, exterior paint, and rental room. 
 
 
 
Schedule 
 
2012 
October: Hire Project/Construction Manager (completed) 
October: Refine project scope (completed) 
October: RFQ for architectural services (completed) 
November: Interview and select architect (completed) 
December: Enter into agreement with architect (completed) 
 
2013 
January: Meet with architect to review preliminary conceptual designs (completed) 
February: Architect provides conceptual design (completed) 
March: Update City Council on project 
March-May: Design development 
May-June: Bidding, City Council approval, notice to proceed, and contractor submittals 
July-September: Construction 
September-October: Flag raising 
 
 
 
Budget 
 

Line Item State Grant Parks Fund Total 

Architectural & Engineering $38,800 - $38,800 

Construction $334,800 - $334,800 

Construction Management $14,400 - $14,400 

Project Management - $17,000 $17,000 

Total $388,000 $17,000 $405,000 

 
 
  

ATTACHMENT 1

95 of 107



Update on Covington Aquatic Center Renovation Concept Design Doc.’s Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 

A 
B 

C 

A: Plaza area and west facing side of building 
 
B: Site of new rental room 
 
C: South facing side of the building (faces 240th St) 

96 of 107



Update on Covington Aquatic Center Renovation Concept Design Doc.’s Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 
 
 

E 

F 

G 

H 

D 

J 

I 

D: Plaza area 
 
E: Main entrance 
 
F: Front desk 
 
G: Entryway to public locker rooms 
 
H: Natatorium (pool area) 
 
I: Rental room (new) 
 
J: Family changing rooms (future project) 
 

97 of 107



Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: March 26, 2013 
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION ON AQUATICS AND FIELD USE FEES 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. 8/30/12 email containing the Kent School District fee waiver request and the Parks and 
Recreation Department’s initial analysis 

2. Reciprocal Use Agreement 
 
PREPARED BY:  Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
In 2010 the city council changed the process for setting aquatics and recreation fees, switching 
from the council setting fees by resolution to the city manager setting the fees.  At that time we 
also established goals and criteria for setting aquatics fees and a 70% cost recovery target.  Since 
then participation has increased from 81,600 to over 92,000 customer visits and cost recovery 
has increased from 59% to an estimated 72%, exceeding the original target. 
 
Now, after a few years of experience with the new process, and due to a request from the Kent 
School District to waive fees for the youth swim and dive teams, and due to the need to establish 
field use fees, it is time to review the city’s recreation fee goals and policies and provide updated 
guidance for the staff and city manager to use when setting the 2013 aquatics and field use fees. 
 
In 2010 the goals were to: 
• Increase revenues 
• Increase participation 
• Improve the fee structure 
• Create a process for future fee updates. 
 
Our experience over the last few years has shown us that these goals can conflict with each other 
at times.  For example, if we focused strictly on maximizing revenue we would cut popular drop-
in programs such as open and family swims in favor of high cost recovery programs such as 
private swimming lessons.  Currently we pursue a balanced approach to provide a wide variety 
of programs for a wide variety of users and aim to optimize increased revenues with increased 
participation. 
 
The factors we have used when setting the fees include: 
• Operating costs (staff, supplies, minor repairs and upgrades) 
• Capital costs (major repairs and upgrades) 
• Annual inflation 
• Market demand 
• Competition/comparable facilities 
• Residency  

98 of 107



 
In the future, the following factors could also be used in addition to or in lieu of the above:   
• Broad public benefit compared to individual benefit (e.g. Covington Days and trail systems 

have broad public benefit with no cost recovery and private swimming lessons have 
individual benefit with high cost recovery) 

• Affordability for various groups (youth and adult, household income, price/customer 
elasticity) 

• Peak load pricing (e.g. higher rates during periods of high demand, lower rates during 
periods of low demand) 

• Economic benefit (e.g. from tournaments) 
• Community values (drawn from mission and vision statement, PROS Plan, Comp Plan, 

surveys, commissions, etc.) 
• Balance the goals of program availability and affordability within the constraints of budget 

allocations, market economics, and cost recovery goals 
• Cost recovery goals per each program or averaged across the board 
• Facility capacity 
• Facility wear and tear 
• Reduce barriers to participation or optimize utilization and revenue generation of existing 

facilities 
 
At this time staff seeks input from council regarding community values and priorities to guide 
staff in establishing and updating aquatic and field use fees, which will be set by the city 
manager in June.  If necessary, staff will provide options and impacts for further discussion in 
April and May.  
 
In addition, the city manager seeks specific direction from the council regarding the KSD 
request.  Staff will provide options and impacts in May.  KSD has agreed to pay current 2012-13 
fees during the city’s decision making process. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
This is a discussion item only for which no alternatives are provided. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
This is a discussion item only for which no financial impact is provided. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        Motion    X   Other 

 
PROVIDE INPUT TO STAFF 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Parks and Recreation Director, City Manager 
 

99 of 107



ATTACHMENT 1

100 of 107



101 of 107



ATTACHMENT 2

102 of 107



103 of 107



104 of 107



105 of 107



  
Covington City Council Meeting 

           Date: March 26, 2013  
 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

April 9 , 2013 – City Council Special & Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

106 of 107



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL & REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, April 9, 2013                                                                                City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
Council will interview Arts Commission applicants beginning at 5:40 p.m. 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER – approximately 7:00 p.m. 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  March 26, 2013 Special & Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson)  
C-3. Authorize Surplus Vehicles (Junkin) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Comments from the Public and Consider Ordinance Creating Transportation Benefit 

District (Hendrickson) 
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
2. Consider Solid Waste Contract with Republic Services (Akramoff) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
3. Discuss Covington Community Park Fencing (Akramoff) 
4. Landscape Maintenance Agreement for Covington Community Park (Junkin) 
5. Preliminary Public Education Plan re Transportation Benefit District (Slate) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  

Draft 
as of 03/21/13 

 

107 of 107

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�

	03-26-13 Special for Interviews & Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, March 26, 2013                                                                           City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent C-1 Green Sheet 03-26-2013 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent C-1 Attachment 1 02.12.13 Study Session
	Consent C-1 Attachment 2 03.12.2013 Reg CC
	Consent C-2 Green Sheet 03-26-2013 Vouchers Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent C-2 Attachment
	Consent C-3 Green Sheet 03-26-13 City Attorney 2013 contract Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-3

	Consent C-3 Attachment 1 SBS Contract_3-26-13
	Consent C-4 Green Sheet Black Diamond ILA Blue Sheet Meyers & Hart 3-12-13
	Consent Agenda Item C-4

	Consent C-4 Attachment 1 - Covington-Black Diamond ILA 3-12-13
	A. EXHIBIT A

	Consent C-5 Green Sheet 03-26-13 Soos Creek Billing Agreement
	Consent C-5 Attachment 1
	Consent C-6 Green Sheet 03-26-13 Gray and Osborne Agreement Blue Sheet
	Consent Agenda Item C-6

	Consent C-6 Attachment 1 03-26-13 Gray and Osborne Agreement
	Item 1 Blue Sheet 03-26-2013 HS Commission Appointments
	Agenda Item 1

	Item 2 Blue Sheet CitizenSurveyQuestions03-26-13
	Item 2 Attachment 2 FINAL 2009 Citizen Survey Report - rev. 3-15-10
	Item 3 Blue Sheet Blue Sheet, Update On Covington Aquatic Center Renovation, 3-26-13
	Item 3 Attachment 1 Concept Design Documents
	Item 4 Blue Sheet Aquatics and Recreation Fees 2013-3-26
	Item 4 Attachment 1 KSD Email on Waiver Request
	Item 4 Attachment 2 Kent School District Reciprocal Use Agreement
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	04-09-13 Special for Interviews & Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, April 9, 2013                                                                                City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




